
UMTED STATES DISTRICT COT-IRT
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

I]NTlfED STATES OF AMERICA

Case Number:

WILI,IAM L. COT]RTIIIGHI], ChiefJudge Conner

Defendant

IN!'ORMATION

THI4 TIN]TED STATES AITORNEY CHARGES:

COUNT 1

18 U.S.C. $ 371
(Conspiracy)

At times material to thrs lnJormation:

A. Persons and -llntities

t. The City ofScranton. Pennsylvania was an organization and

local government that rer:eived federal assjstance 'in excess of $10,000 in

each ofthe one-yeal calendar periocls beginning on Jantiary 1, 2014 and

ending on December 31, 2018.

2. Defendant WILLIAM L. COIIRTRIGHT was the elected Mayor

of the City of Scranton. COIIRTRIGH'I' took olTice i.n January 2014 and

was re'elected in 2017
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:1. COURTRIGHT's offir:e vested in him actual and perceived

authority and inflnence over, among other things, the awarding of

4. Defendant COURTRIGHT's office also vested in him actual and

perceived authority over certain offices and bodies within the Citv of

Scranton governrnent, including: the Office of Licensing, Inspections

and Permitsi the City Planning Commissioni the Departments of

Administration and Community Developmenti the Collector of Taxesi

and, the Scranton City Council.

5 CO URTIiIGHT was a n agent of the Citv of Scranton

empowercd to take ofiicial action on behalf of the City. Contract

officiats. Pursuant to Article VI, S 6-14(D) of the City of Scranton

Administratrvc Codc, all contracts awarded by the City of Scranton had

to be signed by tho Mayor.

Sr-rmmit Karate Club, which was located in Scranton.

2

certain contracts, licenses and permits by the City of Scranton.

awards in the City of Scranl,on required official action by public

6. Defendant WILLIAM L. COURTRIGHT rvas also the owner of
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a company that wrshed to maintain a corrtract with the City of Scranton

for the Colle ction oI' Delinquent 'faxes and Refuse Fees

B. On August 22,20ll, before WILLIAM L. COURTRIGHT was

elected Mayor, Company #1 was arvarded a contlact by the City of

Scranton to collect delinquent taxes owed to the City for tax years 2010

and earlier. The contracl is hereinafter referred to as "the Companv #1

Contract." The Company #1 Contract was signed by, among others, the

former Mayol of thc City of Scranton and Person #1. the president of

Company #1. Thc term ofthe Company #1 Contract ended on JuIy 31,

2013 and 1;hc parties had the optron to renew the contract for an

additional one year by giving written notice of their intent to do so

ninety days before the cxpiration of the contract term.

9. On March 19,2072, tlie City of Scranton and Comparly #1

entered an Addendum Agreement to the Company #1 Contract to

include the collection of deiinquent refuse fees by Company # l . The

Addendum Agi'cement for services was signed by, arnong olhers, the

7. Person #1 was the president of Company #1. Company #1 was

former Mayor" of thc City of Sclanton and Person #1.
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10. On JuIy 26, 2013, rhe City of Scranton and Company #1

ent.ered a Second Addendum Agreement to the Company #1 Contract.

The Second Addendum Agreement was signed by, among others. the

formel Mayor of the City of Scranton and Person # 1 . The Second

Addendum Agreement provided that the contract for the collection of

delinquent taxes and t"efuse fees by Company #l would be extended for

an additior.ral year and that the contract would automatically continue

for additional one-year periods thereafter, unless terminated by either

palty by giving written notice of its intention to terminate the contracl

nrnety days before expiration of the then current term. As Mayor of the

City of Scranton, COURTRIGHT had autholity to influence and cause

tcrn.rination of the Company #1 Contract.

11. Person #2 was thc owncr and managel o{'a company that

devcloped commet'cial and i:esidentiai properties in the Ciiy of

Scranton. To conduct business, Person #2 needed occupancy permits,

contractor's licenses and othcr official authorizatrons fi'orn the City of

Scr:anton, which Person #2 requested I'lom the City of Scranton Office of

4

Liccnsing, Inspections and Ircrmits.
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12. O1,hcr unnamed persons owncd or operated businesses that

sought licenses, grants, ser-vices, contracts and other things of value

from Lhe City ofScranton or flom offices and bodies within the Oity of

Scranton over which COURI'IIIGHT exercised actual and perceived

authority.

B. Objects of the Conspirac.y

to accept, and agree to accept, for the benefit ot'COURTRIGHT and

others, cash and other valuable property frorn others who had business

and transactrons wibh the Citv of Scranton involving things ofvalue of

$5,000 and more intending for COURTRIGHT to be corruptly

influenced and req,arded rn connectron with the business and

transactions. It was also an object of the conspiracy for COURTRIGHT

to use his posrt,ion as Mayor corruptly to obtain cash and other valuable

property trom others, with their consent, under color of official right. It

was also an objecL of the conspiracy for COUR'I'RIGHT to use his

position as 1\4ayor corruptly Lo obtain cash, c:rmpaign contributions and

other valuablc property from othels, with thcir consent, induced by the

wrongfui use of fear of ecortomic harm

13. An ob;ect of the conspiracy was for COURTRIGHT and others

5
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14. It was part of the conspiracy that, Def'endant WILLIAM L.

COURTRIGHT solicited cash payments, campaign contributions and

other property, fbr the benefit of COLIRTRIGH'II, fi'om individuals and

entities wishing to conduct business in the Citv of'Scranton ol with the

City of Scranton. COURTRIGHT directed others, including unjndicted

co-conspirators associated with the City of Scranton and the "Friends of

Bill Courtright" campaign committee, to solicit such payments,

campaign contributions and other property for the benefit of

COUR'IRIGHT. COURTRIGHT obtaincd payments, campaign

contribrLtions and other property thtough threats oI'economic harm. In

some instances, COIIRTRIGHT took adverse official action against

persons and cntities to cartse thcm tti make payments and contribntions

for the benefit of COURTITIGHT. In some instances, COtlIi'I'RIGHT

directed unindicted co-conspirator employces of the Cit,v of Scranton to

take such adverse action against persons and entities to compel

15. For example, shortly after taking officr: in 20 t4,

COURTRIGIIT direcled one ancl moro represenl,atives of the Ort)r of

(i

C. Manner and Means

payrnents and contributions for the bcnefit of COIIRTRIGHT.
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Scranton to take official action temporarily to halt development projects

Scranton and did not provide financial support to COURTRIGHT's

campaign to be elected Mayor of Scranton in 2013. In fact, a nttml.rel of

Person #2's proiects were halted. The projects were permitted to

proceed only after Person #2 agreed l,o provide financial support to

COURTRIGHT.

16. It was also parl. of the conspiracy that I)efendant WILLIAM

of thousands of dollars in cash, use of a beach property, installation of a

staircase and support framing at Summit I(arate C1ub, and landscaping

work at his personal residence. This property was obtained from

businesspersons, with thcir consent, ttnder colol of official right, in

exchange fol COURTITIGIIT's official actiou and inlluence as specrfic

opportunities arose.

17. It was also part of the conspiracy that Dei'endant WILLIAM

L. COIIIITRIGHT corruptly accepted and agreed to accepL, for the

benefit of COURTRIGH'l' and others, thousands of dollars in cash anrl

other things of value intending for COURTRIGHT to be influenced and

7

of Person #2. Person #2 was a friend and supporter of a former Mayor of

L. COURTRIGIIT obtained property including, but not limited to, tens
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rewar(led in connection with business, t,ransactions and series of

transzrctions of thc City of Scranton involving contracts of a value of

$5,000 and more.

18. On some occasions, to insulate COIIRTRIGHT from the actual

physical transfer ofcash payments, it was part ofthe conspiracy that

intcrmedraries accepted cash payments made to COURTRIGHT and

then later transferred the cash to COURTRIGHT

D. The Consp!:'acv

19. From on or about February 1,2014 to on or about January 9,

2019, in thc Middle Districi of Pennsylvania, and elsewhere, the

defenda nt,

WILLIAM L. COURTRIGHT,

did knowingly and intentionally conspire and agree with other persons

known:rnd unknown to the Llnited Statcs: (1) to obstruct, delay, antl

nffect in any way and degree commerce, and the movement of articles

fcar of economic harm, .in violation of Title I B, United States Code,

Section 1951(d; (2) to obstrr-rct, de1ay, and affect in any way and dcgree

comr.rerce, and the movement of articies and commodities in cornmelce,

B

and commodities in commerce: by extortion through the wrongful use of
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by extortion under color of official right, in violation of Title 18, I-Inited

States Code, Section 1951(a); and (3) to corruptly solicit, demand, accept

and agree to accept, for the benefit of any person, anything ofvalue

frcrm any pcrson, intending for COURTRIGHT to be influenced and

rewalded in connection with any business, transaction and series o1'

transacLions ofthe City of Scranton involving a thing ofvalue of $5,000

and more, in violation oi'Title 18, United States Code, Section

e 0a(a)(l)(B).

E. Overt Acts

20. In furtherance of the conspiracy, urembers of the conspiracy

committed the foll<-rwing overt acts, among oLhers:

On July 28,2017, WILLIAM L. COURTRIGHT accepted ail

paymont in the amount of $1,500 from another personi

b. On August 17,2077, WILLIAM L COURTRIGHT accepted a

cash payrnent in the amount of $1,500;

On August 29,2077, Wll,l,lAM L. COURTRIGHT accepted a

cash payment in the amount of $1 ,000;

d. On November 17, 2017, WII,LIAM L. COURTRIGHT dilected

another person to deliver $4,000 in cash to an intermediaryi

(

q
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e On January 4,2078, WILLIAM L. COURTRIGHT accepted

92,500 in cash fi'orn another personi

f. On May 2,2018, WILLiAM L. COURTRIGHT directed another

person to deliver $2 000 in cash to an intermediaryi

o Or.r May 2, 2018, an intermediary accepted $2,000 in cash from

another llelson;

h. On May 29,2078, WILLIAM L. COURTRIGHT directed

another person to deliver $3,000 in cash to an intermediaryi

On May 29, 2078, an intermediary accepted $3,000 in cash froml

another person;

l On July 11, 2018, WILLIAIVI L. COURTRIGI{T accepted $2,500

rn cash from another personi

k. Iletween 2014 and on or about January 9, 20f9,

CO URTRIGHT accepted tcns of thousands of dollars in cash and other

things of value from multiple businesspersons who had business

perlding before bhe Ctty of Scranton or pending before oflices ol bodies

within the City o1'Scranton governmenti

t0
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1- On rnultiplc occasion bctween 2014 and on or about January 9,

2019, intermediaries delivered thousands of doilars in cash to

WILLIAM L. COURTRIGHT;

m. On or about January 9,2079, WILL,IAM L. COUITTRIGHT

stored thousands of dollars in cash in a safe at his residence, part of

which was cash paid to COURTRIGHT by Person #1 and Pcrson #2.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371.

1l
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THE UMTED S'IATES ATTORNEY I'URTIIER CHARGES:

COUN'I'2
1B U.S.C. $ i951(a)

(Attempt io Obstruct Commelce by
Ilxtortion Under Color of Official Right)

21. The allegations contained in paragtaphs 1-18 and 20 are fully

tncorporated herein.

22. On or about January 4, 2018, in Scranton, in the Middle

District of Pennsylvania, defendant,

WILLIAM L. COIJITTRIGHT,

did knowingly and intentionally attempt to obstmct, deiay, and affect

interstate commerce by extortion under color of official right - that is,

by taking and obtaining a payment in the amount of $5,000, $2,500 of

which was in cash and $2,500 of which was in the form of a campaign

contribution rnadc by check, which COURTRIGHT believed oame from

Person #2. with Person #2's consent. Regarding the $2,500 payment in

the form of a campaign contribution, COURTRIGI'IT took and obtained

the paynrent ir quid pt'o q,uo exchange firr COURIIRIGHT's agreement

to take official action to assist Person #2 to obtain a contractor's license

from the City of Sct"anton Office of Liccnsing, Inspections and Permlts.

llegarding the $2,500 cash payment, COTJRTRIGHT took and obtatned

72
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the payment in quid pt'o quo exchange for COUIiTRIGHT's official

actions on behalf of Person#2 to assist Person #2 to obtain a

contracLor's license from the City of Scranton Ofiice of Licensing,

Inspcctions and Permits and to take additional official action to assist

Person #2 as specific opportunities arose.

In violation of Title I8, Uruted States Code, Sections 1951 and 2.

1DI ()

Case 3:19-cr-00208-CCC   Document 1   Filed 07/01/19   Page 13 of 17



THE UNITEID STATES ATTOITNIIY FURTHER CHARGES:

COTINT 3

18 U.S.C. g 000(aXtXB)
(Bribery Concerning Programs Receiving l-ederal Funds)

23. The allegations contained in paragraphs 1-18 and 20 are fully

incorporatcd herern.

24. On or about Novembel 17,2017, in Scranton, in the Middle

f)istrict of Pennsylvania, def'endant,

WILLIAM I,. COURTRIGHT,

for the benefit of himself and others, things of value as set forth below,

intending for defendant COURTRIGHT to be inlluenced and rewarded

in connection with a business, transaction and series of transactions of

namely, COUIIiIRIGHT accepted a cash payment in the amount of

$4,000, intcnding to be inlLr"rcnced and rewarded in connection with the

continuation of a delinquent tax collection contracL of a value of more

than $5,000 awarded bv the City of Scranton t,o Company #1. At the

direction of COIIRTRIGHT, Lhe $4,000 cash payment was hand

delivered to an intermediary, who acceptecl the corrupt payment on

74

did knowingly and corruptly accept, and agree to accept from another,

the City of Scranton invo)ving a thing of value of $5,000 and more,
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behalf of COURTRIGFIT. At the time he accepted bhe payment,

COTIRTRIGHT belicvcd the payment came from Person #1

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 004(a)(t)(B)

15

and 2.
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NOTICI] OF INTFINT TO SnUt( l'O1t!'!lt'I',URE

25. The aliegations contained in Counts 1 thror.rgh 3 of the

foregoing Inforrnation are hereby realleged and incorporated by

refercnce for the purpose of alleging forfeibutes pursuant to Title 18,

Llnited States Code, Sections 982(a)(1) and 981(a)(1)(C) and Title 28,

United States Code, Section Zadk).

26. Upon conviction of the offenses in vi.olation of Title 18,

United States Code, Sections 1951 and 666 as setforth in Counts 2 and

3 of this Information, the defendant,

WILLIAM L. COURTRIGHT,

shall lbrfeit to the United States of Arnerica, pursuant to Title 18,

which constitutes or is derived from proceeds traceable to the offenses

and any property, real or persolal, involved in such offcnscs. The

proper-ly to be forfeited includes, but is not lirnited to, the fbliowing:

a. $36,705 United States currency.

21 . If any of the proper:Ly described above, as a result of any act

or omission of the defenclant

16

United States Code, Sections 982(a)(1) and 981(a)(1)(C) ana Title 28,

United States Code, Section 2ailk), any pr:operty, real or personal,
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a

b

cannot be located upon the exerclse of due diJigencei

has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third

.{r-
MI HAI'LA. CONS]GLI

party;

c

d. has been substantially diminished in valuei or

e has been cornmingled with other property which cannot be

divided without difficulty,

the United States of America shall be entitled to lbrfeiture of substitute

property pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 853(p), as

incorporated by Title 18, United States Code, Section 982(b)(1) and

Title 28, United States Code, Section 2461G).

A11 pursuant to 18 U.S.C. $$ 982(d(1) and 981(a)(1)(C) and 28

U.S.C. $ 2467(c)

DAVID J. FRI,IED
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

I]Y:
DATE MICHI]LLE I,SHEF

ASSISTANT I S I'TORNEY
<a'\

l,tI]Y:

11

ASSISTANT U.S. A'I']'ORNEY

has been placed beyond the Surisdiction of the courti

tlrfzog
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